
AGENDA – Regular Meeting of Council

Wednesday, April 16, 2025

1:00 PM

Magnetawan Community Centre

Page # OPENING BUSINESS

1.1          Call to Order

1.2          Adoption of the Agenda 

1.3          Disclosure  of  Pecuniary  Interest

3 1.4          Adoption  of  Previous Minutes

DEPUTATION 

10 Justin Bellon - Increasing Occupancy by 2, 12 Year Old Children 

DOCKS ON UNOPENED ROAD ALLOWANCES/MUNICIPAL LAND POLICY 

12 *Elizabeth White/Andrew Czernik - Docks on Unopened Road Allowances 

19 *Kevin Anyan, Scouts Canada - 24X24 3-Slip Dock on the Unopened Road Allowance on Lake Cecebe 

22 *Justin Wasielewski, Cecebe Waterways Association (CWA)- Docks on Unopened Road Allowances 

  Municipally Owned 

24 *DRAFT Docks on Unopened Road Allowances/Municipal Lands Policy & Public Comments 

PLANNING ACT MEETING 

46 Zoning By-law Application - Tot - CON 9 LOT 21

61 Zoning By-law Application - Woodruff - CON 10 PT LOT 24 & 25 

80 Zoning By-law Housekeeping Amendment Entire Municipality

STAFF QUARTERLY REPORTS 

98 Report from Fire Chief Derek Young

100 Report from By-law Enforcement Officer Jason Newman 

102 Report from Chief Building Official Tyler Irwin 

104 Report from Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards

106 Report from Parks and Maintenance Manager Steve Robinson 

107 Report from Deputy Clerk Erica Kellogg 

109 Report from Deputy Clerk Laura Brandt 

STAFF REPORTS, MOTIONS AND DISCUSSION

112 2.1 Consent Agreement (Limited Services Agreement) - Herrnstein - CON 4 LOT 13 

117 2.2 Patti Paul, Farmers Market Rent Reduction Request 

119 2.3 Donation Request Magnetawan Agricultural Society Fall Fair 

121 2.4 Donation Request Near North Crime Stoppers Golf Tournament 

123 2.5 Parry Sound Area Community Business & Development Centre Request for Funding & 2024 

Financial Statements

147 2.6 Board Appointment EMS Advisory Committee 

150 2.7 District of Parry Sound Municipal Association 2025 Spring Meeting May 23, 2025 

152 2.8 DRAFT Motion Fire Protection Grant (2024-2025)



155 2.9 DRAFT Adopt a Code of Conduct for Building Officials 

157 2.10 DRAFT Open Air Burning 
171 2.11 DRAFT Set Tax Ratios for Municipal Purposes and Levy the Rates of Taxation for the  

Year 2025

MUNICIPAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

175 3.1 Magnetawan Economic Tourism Committee (METC) Minutes March 26, 2025 

177 3.2 Almaguin Highlands Health Centre (AHHC) Minutes April 3, 2025 

CORRESPONDENCE

180 4.1 Bruce County Enabling a Municipal Response to Tariffs 

182 4.2 District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board (DSSAB) Action-Orientated 

Encampment Response Plan 

184 4.3 FONOM Ministry of Transportation Approach with Northern Municipalities 

185 4.4 OPP MPB Financial Services Unit (OPP) 2025 Court Security and Prisoner Transportation 

Grant Update 

186 4.5 Thank You Letter Magnetawan Public Library 

187 4.6 Successful Outcome of ParticipACTION Grant 

189 4.7 Municipal Office & Landfill Easter Closure Poster 

190 4.8 Call for Artists Poster

191 4.9 Call for Concession Stand Operators Poster 

192 4.10 Music in the Park Poster 

193 4.11 1st Annual Magnetawan Leekfest Poster 

194 4.12 ICYMI Council Highlights March 26, 2025

ACCOUNTS

195 5.1 Accounts in the amount of $504,569.51

BY-LAWS

209 6.1 Zoning By-law - Tot - CON 9 LOT 21

211 6.2 Zoning By-law - Woodruff - CON 10 PT LOT 24 & 25 

213 6.3 Zoning By-law Housekeeping Amendment 

218 6.4 Consent Agreement (Limited Services Agreement) - Herrnstein - CON 4 LOT 13 

223 6.5 Adopt a Code of Conduct for Building Officials 

225 6.6 Open Air Burning 

239 6.7 Set Tax Ratios for Municipal Purposes and Levy the Rates of Taxation for the  

Year 2025

CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended,   

Council shall proceed into Closed Session in order to address matters pertaining to:
(b)  personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board 

employees

(c) a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land 

CONFIRMING BY-LAW AND ADJOURNMENT

243 7.1 Confirm the Proceedings of Council and Adjourn



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
April 04, 2025 

10:00 am 
 

The meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan was 
held at the Magnetawan Community Centre on Wednesday April 4, 2025, with the 
following present: 
 
Mayor Sam Dunnett 
Deputy Mayor John Hetherington 
Councillor Bill Bishop 
Councillor Jon Hind  
Councillor Brad Kneller 
 
Staff: CAO/Clerk Kerstin Vroom, Treasurer Stephanie Lewin, Public Works 
Superintendent, Scott Edwards, Parks and Maintenance Manager Steve Robinson  and 
Deputy Clerk Recreation and Communications Laura Brandt were present for the entire 
meeting.  
 
OPENING BUSINESS 
1.1 Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
1.2  Adoption of the Agenda 
RESOLUTION 2025-82 Hetherington-Bishop 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan adopts the agenda 
as presented. 
Carried. 
 
1.3 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 
Mayor Sam Dunnett stated that should anyone have a disclosure of pecuniary interest 
that they could declare the nature thereof now or at any time during the meeting. 
 

  

Page 3 of 243 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

2.1 Draft Budget #2 
Memo from Treasurer 
 Reserves and Reserves Funds  
Draft #2 Municipal Budget Narrative 
RESOLUTION 2025-83 Kneller-Hetherington 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan directs Staff to 
finalize the 2025 budget as directed and to prepare the By-law to set and levy the rates 
of taxation for passing at the April 16, 2025 meeting; 
AND FURTHER Council thanks Staff for their good work on preparing the 2025 budget. 
 
Recorded Vote Called by Councillor Bill Bishop  
Bill Bishop       Nay 
Deputy Mayor John Hetherington   Yea   
Jon Hind       Nay  
Brad Kneller     Yea    
Mayor Sam Dunnett     Yea    
 
Carried. 
 
3.1 Adjournment  
RESOLUTION 2025-84 Hetherington-Bishop  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan that this 2025 
Draft Budget #2 meeting is now adjourned at 11:20 am to meet again for the regular 
meeting of Council on Wednesday, April 16, 2025 at 1:00 pm. 
Carried. 
 
Approved by: 
 
_____________________________                                _____________________________ 
Mayor         Clerk 
 

Page 4 of 243 



Page 5 of 243 



Page 6 of 243 



Page 7 of 243 



Page 8 of 243 



Page 9 of 243 



Page 10 of 243 



Page 11 of 243 



Page 12 of 243 



Page 13 of 243 



Page 14 of 243 



Page 15 of 243 



Page 16 of 243 



Page 17 of 243 



Page 18 of 243 



Page 19 of 243 



Page 20 of 243 



Page 21 of 243 



Page 22 of 243 



Page 23 of 243 



Page 24 of 243 



Page 25 of 243 



Page 26 of 243 



Page 27 of 243 



Page 28 of 243 



Page 29 of 243 



Page 30 of 243 



Page 31 of 243 



Page 32 of 243 



Page 33 of 243 



Page 34 of 243 



Page 35 of 243 



Page 36 of 243 



Page 37 of 243 



Page 38 of 243 



Page 39 of 243 



Page 40 of 243 



Page 41 of 243 



Page 42 of 243 



Page 43 of 243 



Page 44 of 243 



Page 45 of 243 



Page 46 of 243 



Page 47 of 243 



Page 48 of 243 



Page 49 of 243 



Page 50 of 243 



Page 51 of 243 



Page 52 of 243 



Page 53 of 243 



Page 54 of 243 



Page 55 of 243 



Page 56 of 243 



Page 57 of 243 



Page 58 of 243 



Page 59 of 243 



Page 60 of 243 



Page 61 of 243 



Page 62 of 243 



Page 63 of 243 



Page 64 of 243 



Page 65 of 243 



Page 66 of 243 



Page 67 of 243 



Page 68 of 243 



Page 69 of 243 



Page 70 of 243 



Page 71 of 243 



Page 72 of 243 



Page 73 of 243 



Page 74 of 243 



Page 75 of 243 



Page 76 of 243 



Page 77 of 243 



Page 78 of 243 



Page 79 of 243 



Page 80 of 243 



Page 81 of 243 



Page 82 of 243 



Page 83 of 243 



Page 84 of 243 



Page 85 of 243 



Page 86 of 243 



Page 87 of 243 



Page 88 of 243 



Page 89 of 243 



Page 90 of 243 



Page 91 of 243 



Page 92 of 243 



Page 93 of 243 



Page 94 of 243 



Page 95 of 243 



Page 96 of 243 



Page 97 of 243 



Page 98 of 243 



Page 99 of 243 



Page 100 of 243 



Page 101 of 243 



Page 102 of 243 



Page 103 of 243 



Page 104 of 243 



Page 105 of 243 



Page 106 of 243 



Page 107 of 243 



Page 108 of 243 



Page 109 of 243 



Page 110 of 243 



Page 111 of 243 



Page 112 of 243 



Page 113 of 243 



Page 114 of 243 



Page 115 of 243 



Page 116 of 243 



Page 117 of 243 



Page 118 of 243 



Page 119 of 243 



Page 120 of 243 



Page 121 of 243 



Page 122 of 243 



Page 123 of 243 



Page 124 of 243 



Page 125 of 243 



Page 126 of 243 



Page 127 of 243 



Page 128 of 243 



Page 129 of 243 



Page 130 of 243 



Page 131 of 243 



Page 132 of 243 



Page 133 of 243 



Page 134 of 243 



Page 135 of 243 



Page 136 of 243 



Page 137 of 243 



Page 138 of 243 



Page 139 of 243 



Page 140 of 243 



Page 141 of 243 



Page 142 of 243 



Page 143 of 243 



Page 144 of 243 



Page 145 of 243 



Page 146 of 243 



Page 147 of 243 



Page 148 of 243 



Page 149 of 243 



Page 150 of 243 



Page 151 of 243 



Page 152 of 243 



Page 153 of 243 



Page 154 of 243 



Page 155 of 243 



Page 156 of 243 



Page 157 of 243 



Page 158 of 243 



Page 159 of 243 



Page 160 of 243 



Page 161 of 243 



Page 162 of 243 



Page 163 of 243 



Page 164 of 243 



Page 165 of 243 



Page 166 of 243 



Page 167 of 243 



Page 168 of 243 



Page 169 of 243 



Page 170 of 243 



Page 171 of 243 



Page 172 of 243 



Page 173 of 243 



Page 174 of 243 



Page 175 of 243 



Page 176 of 243 



Page 177 of 243 



Page 178 of 243 



Page 179 of 243 



Page 180 of 243 



Page 181 of 243 



Page 182 of 243 



Page 183 of 243 



Page 184 of 243 



Page 185 of 243 



Page 186 of 243 



Page 187 of 243 



Page 188 of 243 



Page 189 of 243 



Page 190 of 243 



Page 191 of 243 



Page 192 of 243 



Page 193 of 243 



Page 194 of 243 



Page 195 of 243 



Page 196 of 243 



Page 197 of 243 



Page 198 of 243 



Page 199 of 243 



Page 200 of 243 



Page 201 of 243 



Page 202 of 243 



Page 203 of 243 



Page 204 of 243 



Page 205 of 243 



Page 206 of 243 



Page 207 of 243 



Page 208 of 243 



Page 209 of 243 



Page 210 of 243 



Page 211 of 243 



Page 212 of 243 



Page 213 of 243 



Page 214 of 243 



Page 215 of 243 



Page 216 of 243 



Page 217 of 243 



Page 218 of 243 



Page 219 of 243 



Page 220 of 243 



Page 221 of 243 



Page 222 of 243 



Page 223 of 243 



Page 224 of 243 



Page 225 of 243 



Page 226 of 243 



Page 227 of 243 



Page 228 of 243 



Page 229 of 243 



Page 230 of 243 



Page 231 of 243 



Page 232 of 243 



Page 233 of 243 



Page 234 of 243 



Page 235 of 243 



Page 236 of 243 



Page 237 of 243 



Page 238 of 243 



Page 239 of 243 



Page 240 of 243 



Page 241 of 243 



Page 242 of 243 



Page 243 of 243 



Dear Municipality of Magnetawan Council Members, 

 

The Cecebe Waterway Association (CWA) would like to express concerns regarding the proposed policy for 
docks on unopened road allowances. Numerous individuals, both members and non-members, have reached out 
to voice their opinions on this matter. 

We request that the council of Magnetawan reconsider the policy. We believe it may not align with the 
interests of the broader community. It is important to protect our environment, including lands and waterways, to 
ensure they remain healthy for future generations. There are concerns about the potential for pollution, particularly 
if non-residents gain access to shorelines where they may not have a personal stake in preservation efforts. 

Additionally, accessing construction sites with equipment and materials may disturb previously 
undisturbed lands and waterways. The impact on wildlife and their habitats should be carefully considered. 
Increased boat traffic and noise could also affect the enjoyment of current waterfront property owners. 

The draft policy does not explicitly address pollution liability insurance. Pollution is not covered under 
general liability insurance policies. This omission raises concerns about the potential environmental impact and 
who would be responsible for any necessary cleaning and restoration efforts. This dock policy is facilitating 
enhanced and purposeful human traffic on public lands, and all inherent pollution that comes with that traffic.  

We’d urge you to consider the municipality’s liability in the unfortunate event that there is injury or death. 
Any administrative negligence could result in the municipality being ultimately responsible.  

How would the municipality handle disputes, whereby members of the public are seeking to travel on the 
unopened road allowance, while construction is underway, or dock materials are creating an obstacle? Wouldn’t 
the dock itself be an obstacle to those who currently travel the shoreline; perhaps by kayak or canoe? 

The municipality has already established waterway access for the public to enjoy. The new policy benefits, 
disproportionately, stakeholders that are proxy to the dock construction sites, with little, or no further benefit to the 
broader community.  Further emphasizing this, is the language chosen for the erected sign requirement, which 
could easily be mis-interpreted as a non-public access point. 

We would like to remind the council, that unopened road allowances already have a designated purpose. 
Where that purpose is not being fulfilled, it is being preserved until such time. The CWA has heard from their 
members, and they are overwhelmingly happy with the current state of preservation. In contrast, we have not 
heard from a single member who supports enacting this policy. 

This policy comes at a significant cost to our community and environment. We urge the Municipality to 
reconsider this policy, and bring the welfare of all to the forefront of your consideration. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Justin Wasielewski, CPA, CMA  
Cecebe Waterway Association (President) 
 

 

Laura Brandt
Textbox
ON DESK APRIL 16, 2025 



 

 

 
Alex Ciccone 

9 Norwich St. W 
Guelph, ON  N1H 2G8 

Telephone: 519.837.0500 
Fax: 519.763.2204 

 aciccone@garrodpickfield.ca 
File No: 12357 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
April 14, 2025 
 
Mayor Sam Dunnett and Members of Council, Municipality of Magnetawan 
4304 Hwy 520, PO Box 70 
Magnetawan, ON P0A 1P0 
 
Dear Mayor Dunnett and Members of Council: 
 
RE: Proposed Dock Policy on Unopened Road Allowances 
 
We are the lawyers for Mr. Michael Henley, who owns a cottage on Lake Cecebe in the 
Municipality of Magnetawan (the “Municipality”) and are writing with respect to the 
Municipality’s proposed policy to permit docks on unopened road allowances (the “Proposed 
Dock Policy”).  
 
By this letter we are writing to set out significant concerns with the Proposed Dock Policy, and 
are requesting that Municipality of Magnetawan Council (“Council”) make a decision to not 
implement this policy. 
 
In the alternative, if Council wants to further consider the Proposed Dock Policy, it should be 
deferred to a later Council date to get additional information, as outlined below. 
 
This letter will provide the relevant Background (Section 1); set out our client’s concerns with 
the Proposed Dock Policy (Section 2); and provide a summary of our request to Council 
(Section 3).  
 
 

1. Background - Proposed Dock Policy 
 
We have reviewed the legal opinion provided by Ed Veldboom to the Municipality dated 
February 28, 2025, along with the Draft Access Agreement and Draft License Agreement for the 
Proposed Dock Policy. 
 
The Proposed Dock Policy would allow private individuals or corporations to make an 
application to use an unopened road allowance owned by the Municipality to build privately-
owned docks throughout the Municipality.  
 
Permitting privately-owned docks built upon publicly owned unopened road allowances, 
spanning municipally-owned land (i.e. on the shore) and Provincially owned land (i.e. within the 
water) requires navigating a complex set of legislative requirements and common law principles. 
It is likely for this reason that the Municipality retained Mr. Veldboom to provide a legal opinion 

mailto:aciccone@garrodpickfield.ca
Laura Brandt
Textbox
ON DESK APRL 16, 2025



 2  
 

 

on this complex issue, including whether the Municipality would be permitted to rent boat slips 
from these type of docks, or grant exclusive use to these docks on unopened road allowances. 
 
The legal opinion includes the following conclusions: 
 

1. The Municipality has the jurisdiction to allow privately constructed docks to be built on 
unopened road allowances; 
 

2. Neither the person who constructs that dock, nor the Municipality can profit from the use 
of the dock; 
 

3. While the Municipality could provide for exclusive use of portions of the road allowance, 
the portion of the dock over Provincial land (for simplicity: the floating portion of the 
dock) cannot be restricted as the Municipality has no jurisdiction over it; and  
 

4. The Municipality has policies that strongly discourage the closure of road allowances 
which eliminate the public access to a waterbody, including section 6.7 of the 
Municipality’s Official Plan. 

 
Section 6.7 of the Municipality’s Official Plan reads as follows: 
 

6.7 ROAD ALLOWANCES 
The Municipality will not stop up or sell unmaintained road allowances where 
there is any possibility that there is a potential future public use for the lands. 
Road allowances leading to water will not be sold to abutting property owners 
unless there is other public access to the water in the immediate area. The sale 
of lakeshore road allowances may be permitted by the Municipality where there 
are no environmental, cultural, or other public interests that may be affected by 
the sale of these lands. 

 
The Municipality has prepared a Draft License Agreement for the placement of docks on 
unopened road allowances and a Draft Access Agreement between the Licensee who intends 
to construct the dock, and the Municipality. 
 

2. Concerns with Proposed Dock Policy 
 
My client, along with the Cecebe Waterway Association, has a number of concerns with the 
Proposed Dock Policy and the agreements as follows:  
 

A. The Proposed Dock Policy does not conform with the Municipality’s Official Plan; 
 

B. It will lead to nuisance impact on cottage owners (noise, pollution);  
 

C. Parking Impacts, Liability Insurance, and By-law Enforcement; 
 

D. It will significantly impact property values; and 
 

E. It will lead to private entities benefitting from, and profiting from, docks on property they 
do not own, at the expense of residents within the Municipality. 
 

These concerns are set out in further detail below. 



 3  
 

 

a. Conformity with the Municipality’s Official Plan 
 
As outlined above, section 6.7 of the Municipality’s Official Plan prohibits the closure or sale of 
unopened road allowances outright, and only permits closure or sale in certain limited 
circumstances. The intent of policy 6.7 is to prevent the Municipality from limiting access to a 
lake, and preventing any environmental, cultural or other public interest impacts.  
 
The Proposed Dock Policy would allow private individuals or corporations to build a dock on 
publicly-owned land, which is not in the public interest, and does not conform with section 6.7 of 
the Official Plan.  
 
Many of these unopened road allowances run adjacent to existing residential waterfront lots, 
and in some circumstances separate the waterfront lot from the water itself. To allow a private 
entity to build docks in these areas would run contrary to the public interest and significantly 
impact the families who own these residential properties.  
 
Individuals purchased these properties as their primary dwellings or as cottages for their 
families, with the intent to enjoy the waterfront and their properties absent private docks with 
significant throughfare immediately adjacent to, or in front of, their waterfront lots.  
 
For these reasons it is our opinion that the Proposed Dock Policy does not conform with the 
intent of the Municipal Official Plan.  
 

b. Nuisance Impacts 
 
Magnetawan is largely a cottage community, with many residences built on waterfront lots. The 
Municipality enjoys a well-earned reputation as one of the most beautiful, tranquil and natural 
waterfront communities in all of Ontario.  
 
Residents purchase waterfront properties to experience this peaceful cottaging culture, and the 
Proposed Dock Policy will undermine and undo the very reasons that residents purchase 
property in the Municipality in the first place.  
 
The outcomes of the privatization of public property along with the commercialization of the 
cottage/waterfront experience is a known risk in Ontario. Historical cottage communities further 
south of Magenetawan in the Muskokas are seeing the impacts of commercialization today.  
 
The Proposed Dock Policy would allow an unlimited number of individuals to use these 
privately-constructed docks once built. In addition, the current Draft agreements have no limit on 
the size of a dock.  
 
The unfortunate owners of waterfront properties who are adjacent to an unopened road 
allowance with a private-dock will be subjected to countless boat users coming in and out of the 
water, where for the entire history of their property all that existed was a natural waterfront.  
 
These limitless users create noise impacts, and both terrestrial and aquatic environmental 
impacts. From a noise perspective, cottagers who previously enjoyed a quiet waterfront will now 
be subject to motorboats docking, loading and unloading right at their property line. From an 
environmental perspective, constructing and accessing these new docks will impact terrestrial 
and aquatic habitat, will require tree and vegetation removal, and will make a previously natural 
space into a commercial space. This is not what residents signed up for when they purchased 
quiet waterfront lots. 



 4  
 

 

The presence of a dock (of unknown size) along with the required removal of trees and 
vegetation will significantly impact the visual appeal of the lake, both from the perspective of 
cottage owners looking toward the lake, and from the perspective of people on the lake, looking 
at the shoreline.  
 
Lastly, the construction of these docks will impact the privacy that waterfront lot owners have 
enjoyed, and paid for through the purchase of those lots. 
 
 

c. Parking Impacts, Liability Insurance, and By-law Enforcement 
 
In order to make use of the docks resulting from the Proposed Dock Policy, vehicular access 
and likely parking will be required. These represent two additional impacts on the unopened 
road allowances: erosion and de-naturalization from vehicule passage and parking, and 
nuisance impacts.  
 
The Proposed Dock Policy does not address the parking requirements including the number of 
vehicles, location of parking, whether they will be permitted overnight, whether there are 
requirements for parking permits, etc. 
 
Parking also raises two additional issues that apply more broadly but are most clearly 
demonstrated through parking issues: liability/insurance and by-law enforcement. 
 
Will the Municipality secure additional liability insurance for the use of these docks in addition to 
any that is required of the private individuals/corporations who construct the docks? How can 
the private individuals/corporations ensure appropriate use of the dock when they are not legally 
allowed to restrict or charge for access? 
 
Similarly, the Municipality will need to have a monitoring program for these docks to ensure they 
are being used appropriately, and if they are not, the Municipality will be in the position of 
needing to enforce its regulations, which can be quite costly, especially when there is no income 
source from these docks to pay for that prosecution. 
 
 

d. Impact to Property Value 
 
Residential dwellings adjacent to these new docks will see reduction in their property value, as 
future purchasers of these lots will not want to be adjacent to a dock with private or public users, 
impacting their use of the property through a complete loss of privacy, and nuisance impacts.  
 
In addition, lots that are adjacent to any unopened road allowance will see a reduction in 
property value because of the potential that their quiet oasis could soon be bordered by a busy 
public use.  
 
 

e. Private Benefits over Public Interest 
 
If the Municipality approves of the Proposed Dock Policy, it will largely see two kinds of 
applicants: 

• Individual owners of residential property that are near but not fronting on the shoreline, 
looking for boat access to their nearby lake; 



 5  
 

 

• Corporate owners of property used for commercial enterprises who are looking for boat 
access to a lake, nearby or otherwise, as a selling feature of their resort/bed and 
breakfast, etc.  

 
The concern with types of applicants is that it gives the applicants all the benefits while foisting 
all of the impacts on someone else. As they are not adjacent to the dock, they will not be 
impacted by its use.  
 
The second category is even more problematic, allowing private entities to profit from the 
construction of a private dock on public land, attracting even more private users to benefit from 
public property. While the Municipality cannot charge for access to these docks, a resort or bed 
and breakfast who builds a dock can now charge a higher rate to its guests, while taking 
advantage of purchasing lower cost property that has no waterfront access.  
 
We submit that it is wrong to allow private entities to profit off public resources, while causing 
impact to long time residents of the Municipality who happen to have dwellings adjacent to an 
unopened road allowance.  
 
 

3. Request to Council 
 
We urge the Municipality to reject the Proposed Dock Policy and not allow private individuals or 
corporations to benefit from public land, while offsetting the nuisance impacts to the unlucky 
owners of land adjacent to unopened road allowance.  
 
If the municipality wants to increase public access to lakes, it can construct docks or small scale 
marinas on larger lakes, which will also be a source of profit. There are many models for small-
scale marinas across Ontario that generate profit for municipalities while providing public access 
to lakes.   
 
At a very minimum, if the Municipality is not inclined to deny the Proposed Dock Policy, the 
Municipality should defer a decision to a later date to let staff bring a more complete proposal to 
Council. As it stands, the Draft Agreements have no specifics on the cap for the size of docks, 
which is an essential variable to determine before voting on the proposal. There is a significant 
difference in the impact of a small dock fit for small watercraft like canoes and kayaks, and a 
larger multi-slip dock which would permit and encourage a high level of throughfare. 
 
Thank you for considering the community’s interests in this matter.  
 
Yours truly, 

 
Alex Ciccone 
 
 
Cc:  

Michael J. P. Henley, Partner 
Mike.Henley@mckenzielake.com        

Justin Wasielewski, President 
Cecebe Waterway Association 
justinwasielewski@hotmail.com  

 
  

mailto:Mike.Henley@mckenzielake.com
mailto:justinwasielewski@hotmail.com



